TAUPŌ DISTRICT COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE TURANGI/TONGARIRO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING HELD AT THE BOARDROOM, TURANGI SERVICE CENTRE, TOWN CENTRE, TURANGI ON TUESDAY, 9 JULY 2019 AT 1.00PM

- PRESENT:Mrs Pauline Jenkins-Lyons (in the Chair until 1.29pm), Mr Te Takinga New (from
1.08pm; in the Chair from 1.29pm), Cr Tangonui Kingi, Cr Maggie Stewart, Mrs
Karen Donlon, Miss Sharlyn Holt, Mr Wally van der Aa
- **IN ATTENDANCE:** Head of Democracy, Governance & Venues, Head of Risk & Regulatory, District Parks Manager, Parks Manager Community & Open Spaces, Team Leader – Strategic Relationships, Strategic Partnerships Advisor, Customer Relations Manager – Turangi, Facilities Manager, Democratic Services Support Officer
- **MEDIA AND PUBLIC:** 17 members of the public (at various times throughout the meeting)

Deputy chair Mrs Pauline Jenkins-Lyons welcomed everyone to the meeting and advised that she would preside over the meeting until the arrival of chairman Mr Te Takinga New, who had given an apology for lateness. Cr Tangonui Kingi then opened the meeting with a karakia.

- <u>Notes:</u> (i) Apologies were also noted from His Worship the Mayor David Trewavas, the Chief Executive, and the Head of Economic Development & Business Transformation.
 - (ii) The meeting was adjourned for a short break part way through item 4.1, after hearing funding applicant presentations (at 2.54pm) and reconvened at 3.01pm.
 - (iii) Item 4.2 was heard after the meeting reconvened at 3.01pm, prior to continuing with item 4.1 funding deliberations discussions.
 - (iv) Mr New entered the meeting at 1.08pm. He was not present for resolutions TT201907/01 & TT201907/02.

1 APOLOGIES

TT201907/01 RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tangonui Kingi Seconded: Mrs Karen Donlon

That the apology received from Mr Te Takinga New (for lateness) be accepted.

CARRIED

2 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Mr Wally van der Aa	-	Turangi-Tongariro Sports Incorporated
Cr Maggie Stewart	-	Turangi Foodbank
Cr Tangonui Kingi	-	Safe Turangi
Mrs Pauline Jenkins-Lyons	-	Kuratau School (children are students)
	-	The Society for the Animal Care Turangi Incorporated (chairperson)
	-	Jessica Owen (children attend her ballet classes)
Mr Te Takinga New	-	Turangi Rangatahi Hub

3 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

3.1 TURANGI/TONGARIRO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 11 JUNE 2019

TT201907/02 RESOLUTION

Moved: Mr Wally van der Aa Seconded: Mrs Karen Donlon

That the minutes of the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board meeting held on Tuesday 11 June 2019 be confirmed as a true and correct record.

CARRIED

4 REPORTS

4.1 COMMUNITY GRANTS 2019/20

The Strategic Partnerships Advisor noted that apologies had been received from applicants Jessica Owen, Kuratau School, and Taupō Community Playgroup.

The following applicants spoke to their respective community grant applications:

(2) Hine Te Ata Joyce Hoko (on behalf of the Turangi Light Workers)

- Gave a mihi in Te Reo.
- Although there were other local organisations doing similar work, the light workers were a unique group of whanau who were already working within the community.
- Support was offered to everyone, especially those experiencing domestic violence, youth at risk ,welfare difficulties and the homeless.
- Trying to establish a focal point holistic hub / resource centre.
- Two years ago held an open community meeting to discuss health and well-being. From that hui, other welfare issues arose which she assumed would be taken up by the relevant local bodies. Held another meeting last year and was astounded to hear that the same welfare issues were still prevalent drugs, children roaming, etc. The light workers group was formed after this meeting.
- Wanted to strengthen and empower families who needed support.
- Met with the youth aid officer around 18 months ago. At that time, an 11-year old child had committed suicide, which the youth aid officer was not even aware of – an alarming gap already.
- Had worked in the welfare sector for many years.
- Equality with the rest of society for those at risk was a fundamental right.
- Offered to help establish the lightworkers group as an entity, as well as monitor ongoing progress.

The following comments were noted during questions, answers and related discussion:

- The light workers were a group of individuals wanting to help anyone who needed support and were not affiliated to any entity / organisation.
- Felt that nothing had changed in the many years she had been away from Turangi. Organisations / agencies / individuals were still not reaching those people whom they were tasked to help.
- Wanted to prevent children entering the welfare system and becoming involved with statutory agencies.

(18) <u>River of Life Church – Mr Hira Haenga</u>

Tabled pictures of equipment purchased with previous community grants funding.

- Thanked the Board for the \$1,500 grant received last funding round which helped pay for a new trailer.
- Current application was to purchase two lawn mowers, a leaf blower and a weed eater.
- The church established their working group in December 2017.
- Helped more vulnerable people in the community including the elderly, single mothers, and people with mental health issues.
- Currently had 18 properties to maintain. Undertook lawn maintenance every fortnight on a Saturday however currently on hold until spring time.
- There was a great need in the Turangi community for this free service.

The following comments were noted during questions, answers and related discussion:

- Did not take on a house where a contractor was already engaged. Many of their clients were low income earners or beneficiaries who could not afford to pay someone to do their lawns.
- Many elderly clients had health issues eg dementia, cancer, stroke victims. Although they were eligible for funding from Work and Income New Zealand (WINZ), health and trust issues often prevented them from going into WINZ. The group had been connecting clients to various organisations where able, and often became mentors helping them to develop their own confidence.
- Mr Haenga's employer Senjo Security had sponsored hi-vis vests as a way to show their support .

(5) Life Education Trust Central Plateau – Robyn King

- Application was for \$3k to deliver the life education programme to Turangi and Kuratau schools in June / July each year.
- Ms King had been in the role of regional trust manager for almost ten years and was responsible for the day-to-day management and administration of the Trust.
- The Trust employed a full-time educator who worked with schools to plan and deliver their holistic, healthbased programme to students from their mobile classroom.
- Recently completed their programme at Tongariro School with Te Kura o Hirangi next (after July school holidays).
- The Trust purpose was 'To educate and inspire generations to embrace positive choices for a healthy mind and body'; their vision was 'Enabling children to reach their full potential'. They did not receive any central government funding and were fully funded by sponsorship and donations received from the local community and grants.
- Schools were charged a small fee towards programme costs with the balance being covered by the Trust.
- A key focus was empowering children with strategies to manage the many challenges of growing up.
- Currently took the mobile classroom into 57 schools throughout the region and engaged with approximately 6,000 children each year. Three of the 57 schools (480 children) were from the Taupō district.
- Their shared planning approach with teachers in schools helped ensure the local community needs were met, and children supported to develop into emotionally and physically healthy adults.

In reply to a question, Ms King advised that if a school requested support from the Trust to develop an antibullying programme they would endeavour to assist although that was not something they typically would do.

(7) Omori/Kuratau Pest Management Group - Russell Shaw

- As at August 2019 the group had been in existence for 9-years, and registered as a charitable trust for 8years.
- Able to successfully re-establish birdlife in the Omori/Kuratau area thanks to community / volunteer, grants and sponsorship support.
- Nine years ago started with 25 traps beside the Kuratau River. Currently had 320 traps, 14 different trap lines, and 16 volunteer trappers. Had taken out 4667 predators (mice, rats, stoats) of which 2750 were rats – the most prevalent predator.
- Started off with eggs as a visual attractant, then golf balls; now used a non-toxic fish lure placed in a tea infuser.
- Approached the community for donations of \$75 to cover the costs of a new trap; received 66 donations in response.
- Had two community traps which had been in place for the previous two summers. People would ring in and advise that they had seen a stoat (etc) and a trap would then be placed in that location.
- Extended an invitation to the Board to walk a trap line with the group.

In reply to a question, Mr Shaw advised that he would be more than happy to share his knowledge with local schools, noting that Kuratau School were on-board and trapping very successfully. Mr Shaw started trapping for Mr Jean Stanley around 15-years ago, at which time theirs was the only trapping group around the lake. Nowadays there were 15 trapping groups, which was great.

(9) Purerehua Early Learning Centre - Lou Wright

- Since submitting their application had received news from the Ministry of Education (MOE) that they

would fund a purpose built bicultural early learning centre (site not yet confirmed) therefore withdrew the outdoor carpet and roller blinds from their application.

- Anticipated that they would be in the new building by October / November 2020.
- Still required wet weather gear so that children could access the outdoors irrespective of the weather. Currently the inside area was set up for younger children and the outside for the older children (4-5 years).
- The centre wanted to take the tamariki into the bush to connect to the whenua and increase their understanding around sustainability of the environment.

(10) Safe Turangi, Christal Morrison

- Thanked the Board for the opportunity to present and the previous community grant.
- This was the eighth year running the Turangi Christmas in the Park (CIP) event.
- Safe Turangi vision was 'Leading change to make the Turangi/Tongariro district a safe area to live, work and play'; a proud community where every person felt safe and connected.
- CIP was the largest local event. The main objective was building community cohesion and pride. The event also provided a platform for social and emergency service partners to share their messages.

In reply to a question, Miss Morrison advised that they would look to their sponsors to cover any shortfall and adjust their budget closer to the event, if required. Last year they had 24 financial sponsors and managed to cover shortfalls through that support. The amount requested this year was higher than last year as they wanted to expand the event which in turn increased health and safety requirements and costs.

(12) Taupō Elim Community Church, Deb Brown

- Thanked the Board for the support given last year. Raising funds for community events such as the Taupō Christmas in the Park was getting harder each year therefore very grateful for any funds received.
- Wanting to expand the event this year as aware that the community became bored very easily.
- Would include the Christmas parade again this year.
- With social media being such a huge and often negative distraction, wanted to get behind the community and stimulate community togetherness, as well as provide a free event for all.
- Due to unavoidable circumstances, both the Turangi and Taupō Christmas in the Park events would be held on the same date.

(13) Te Rua Mauri – Kemara Kennedy, Tiare Tito (and their two tamariki)

- Kāinga Tū Taua was a concept that was developed by their whanau as a way to engage with the community. The concept was taken from a Māori perspective, with Te Reo as the foundation for delivery of the programme.
- Would still run the programme if unsuccessful with funding request.
- Application for financial support was to resource and deliver the programme. A key focus of the programme involved connecting and engaging people with the environment – nature, walking tracks, bush, all of which was free to enjoy.
- Initial plan was to start the programme within their own street getting to know their neighbours first then branching out wider.
- Believed the programme which catered for all ages would activate a communal shift in consciousness and raise the energetic vibration of Turangi.
- Funding was to cover kai ora (nutrients from food); wai ora (water); and hauora (general well-being).
- Wanted to increase people's knowledge of Te Maramataka (Moon calendar) and how the energy of the moon affected the tinana (body). Te Maramataka also provided key insights for daily use based on the different phases of the moon e.g. which days were best suited for physical activity, making decisions, holding meetings (etc).
- Te Arawa tohunga Jade Kameta would facilitate a wananga on Te Maramataka.
- Another key component was decolonising the mindset and releasing Gregorian time to allow more freedom to engage with and nurture tamariki and whanau.

In answer to a question, Mr Kennedy advised that discussions had started with some neighbourhood kids he noticed sitting on the kerb one day. Participant numbers would likely be capped at 20 with this being the first programme however, he would eventually extend to others through subsequent wananga.

Kereama Wright from the Te Kaea news programme had also approached them wanting to run a story about the positive initiatives in the Turangi community.

(14) The Cheeky Kea Charitable Trust, Victoria Dreyer & Gloria Dreyer

 The main issue last year was many retailers were not happy having children trick or treating around their stores and creating mess. Planned to build a small village this year for the children to trick-or-treat in. The village would be able to be stored for future use, which would hopefully limit costs in future.

The following comments were noted during questions, answers and related discussion:

- Planned to set up a large marquee on Te Kapua Park for the main activities eg trick or treating, markets, bouncy castles and use the Senior Citizens Hall for playdough slime and other activities.
- The gym was not an option as it would still create a bottle-neck problem.
- Three new trustees had joined (as of yesterday).
- Mitre 10 had donated doors and the timber required for building the village, and would also look at sponsoring some volunteers to assist with running the event closer to the date. The village would be built by volunteers. In reply, Miss Holt advised that she could approach students from Tongariro School who had recently completed a carpentry course to assist. Ms Dreyer responded that volunteers were always needed; she would be able to provide a reference for the students as well.
- A sponsorship pack was being prepared for distribution to local businesses, with an invitation included to sponsor a room.
- The most expensive cost was the marquee at \$3k.

(15) The Society for Animal Care Turangi Incorporated, Stacy Lewis

- Ms Lewis was the centre manager.
- Thanked the Board for previous grant which was used in combination with a grant from Pelorus Trust to build a new safer shelter area.
- This year had re-homed 29 puppies.
- Assisted the community with rehoming stray and abandoned cats.
- Continued to offer subsidised de-sexing programmes. Paws had given \$4k for a de-sexing programme for community service cardholders. The centre had also secured additional funding from Pelorus Trust so those people who did not have a community service card could also access funding support.

In answer to a question, Ms Lewis clarified that 20 volunteers would benefit from the grant.

(16) Tongariro Sports Club Incorporated - Antoinette Kereopa

- Application was for new goal posts, pads and flags. Applied to the 2017 community grants funding round for two sets however since then, the club had grown substantially.
- Appreciated Council's investment in two new sets of goal posts.
- Needed crowd barriers to stop people going onto the field.
- The previous equipment had the Tongariro Sports Club logo on it however, would get 'Turangi' on the new equipment so all local sports teams / clubs could use them. This had been discussed and agreed to with other sports clubs, along with approval for Tongariro Sports to include this equipment in its application on the proviso that the equipment was shared.

The following comments were noted during questions, answers and related discussion:

- Council had barriers stored at the depot which were available for use. In reply Ms Kereopa noted that the quoted set was much more user friendly as it came in a bag that could be wheeled along and the barriers could be pegged into the ground.
- The club had not had any discussions with Ngāti Turangitukua to date however, Ms Kereopa would touch base with them to see how they could better work together.
- The club had submitted an application to Pelorus Trust three months ago for ten sets of uniforms and were granted \$23k.
- The club was looking to submit another application to Pelorus Trust for the rugby field lights.
- Would endeavour to find funds required elsewhere if application was unsuccessful.
- Thanked all staff involved with the maintenance of the park and sports facility. Advised that the club had

received a letter from the rugby board acknowledging the huge improvements at the park and that they enjoyed coming to play rugby in Turangi.

(21) Turangi Rangatahi Hub - Christal Morrison

- Gave apologies on behalf of the Hub chair and leaders who were currently at the Turtle Pools doing a
 programme activity.
- End of June 2019 marked the first full year of programme delivery, including cultural and leadership wananga, four school holiday programmes, and after school programmes.
- The Hub began under the umbrella of Youthtown and were now fully independent, delivering tailor made projects.

The following comments were noted during questions, answers and related discussion:

- Leadership development camps and cultural wananga were targeted for 20-25 leaders from 13-years upwards to attend. Holiday programme capacity was around 50 children from 12-years and under.
- Holiday and afterschool programmes were facilitated by the 25 leaders who had completed the development programmes.
- Children who missed out on previous programmes were given first opportunity to enrol for subsequent programmes.
- The application noted 500 people would benefit from the grant based on the flow-on effect for families.
- Current programme hours were 8.30am to 3.00pm.
- An initial trial of longer hours found that the added demand was too great on the leaders.
- Leadership programmes provided the necessary skills for rangatahi leaders to feel confident to develop the programme content themselves.
- The Chair thanked the rangatahi leaders for taking time from their own holidays to facilitate these programmes.

(22) Turangi Social Connection - Graeme Lauder

- Thanked the Board for last year's grant which was spent on a trip to Rotorua.
- The programme was still the same (as previously presented). A group of around 26 people met every Friday and played board and card games, shared a light lunch, and socialised together. The group was open to all ages although the main people who attended were elderly pensioners.
- Trying to establish a sports exercise programme with the support of Waikato Sports.

In reply to a question, Mr Lauder advised that there were no plans to change from the RSA venue. The RSA were very supportive of the group by allowing them use of their kitchen free of charge to prepare their light lunch.

(23) Turangi Tongariro Sports Foundation - Leslie Hardisty

Mrs Hardisty noted that she had sent updated information to the Strategic Partnerships Advisor to distribute to members, which she took as read and invited questions. Key points noted were:

- Their building (formerly Dr Liaw's surgery) was leased from Council at a reasonable rate. Council had purchased the building for them to use however, it could be used by the health centre in future if required.
- Had discussed the possibility of being located at Turangitukua Sports Park at the time they moved into their current premises, but felt because of the isolated location it was impractical. The current building was more central for people to call in.
- There was no set opening hours as all support was through volunteers.
- TTSF was an umbrella entity for individual sports clubs.
- Prior to the Hub coming on-board, had supported afterschool programmes. Still ran holiday programmes which were more sports focused.
- The annual sports awards would be held on October 19, 2019 (Labour weekend).

(24) Turangi-Tokaanu Sports and Cultural Club - Nicole Donaldson

- Had three teams last year; now had five teams under 4's, 6's, 8's, 10's and 12's. This was a huge boost for Turangi rugby league, which was making a comeback.
- Dambusters had been in existence since the town was built.

- This year had hosted four home games. Bay of Plenty Rugby League had offered for Turangi to host a mod tournament next year which would bring many teams and spectators into town.
- The club appreciated the current state of the sports fields.
- At the end of August 2018, the club took the Under 11's to play curtain raisers for the Warriors. This year Dambusters were represented at the Māori's tournament held in Taupō with some young players being water boys. This was a great opportunity for their players to see the bigger side of league, with NRL development scouts there.
- Application was for smaller items to try and minimise costs on whanau. Did not want children left out because of costs / affordability.
- The club did a lot of travelling and tried to support whanau by providing fuel vouchers.

In answer to a question, Mrs Donaldson advised that last year Pelorus Trust had provided a grant for new uniforms. They would apply to Pelorus again (this year) for a new set of uniforms for their under 4's.

TT201907/03 RESOLUTION

Moved: Mrs Karen Donlon Seconded: Miss Sharlyn Holt

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board approves the following grant applications for the 2019/20 financial year:

- 1. \$1,000.00 to 1st Taupō Scout Group for costs towards attending Jamboree 2019.
- 2. \$2,000.00 to Hine Te Ata Joyce Hoko (on behalf of the Turangi Light Workers) to set up a nonjudgmental permanent refuge (Resource Hub Centre).
- 3. \$ 780.00 to Jessica Owen for Turangi ballet classes.
- 4. *\$1,500.00 to Kuratau School for bus travel to Wellington for Years' 6, 7 & 8 school trip.
- 5. *\$2,000.00 to Life Education Trust Central Plateau to deliver Life Education programme in Turangi schools.
- 6. *\$2,000.00 Mangakino School (formerly Mangakino Area School) 'Preserving Our Past' project.
- 7. \$1,380.00 to Omori Kuratau Pest Management Group for consumables for the continuation of the Omori Kuratau Pest Management.
- 8. *\$1,693.00 to Project Tongariro for Oruatua predator trapping.
- 9. *\$1,597.00 to Purerehua Early Learning Centre for wet weather gear and to update the Centre's furnishings and gear.
- 10. \$8,000.00 to Safe Turangi for Turangi Christmas in the Park 2019.
- 11. \$1,000.00 to Taupō Community playgroup for building maintenance.
- 12. *\$1,000.00 to Taupō Elim Community Church for Christmas in the Park 2019.
- 13. \$ 500.00 to Te Rua Māuri for a 12-week program that is Health and Wellness focused.
- 14. *\$3,000.00 to The Cheeky Kea Charitable Trust for Spooky Spring 2019, the Turangi Community Halloween Party.
- 15. \$1,000.00 to The Society for Animal Care Turangi, Incorporated for an overhead shelter for dog kennel area.
- 16. \$2,000.00 to Tongariro Sports Club for pads, flags and crowd barriers for use at Turangitukua Park.

17.	\$5,500.00	to Turangi Foodbank Incorporated for food stock, office expenses and running costs,
18.	\$2,360.00	to Turangi Mountain Region Trust trading as the River of Life Church for the purchase of further equipment: 2 x lawn mowers, Stihl blower, Stihl brushcutter.
19.	\$2,000.00	to Turangi Neighbourhood Support for coordinator's wages for 3 months.
20.	\$2,500.00	to Turangi Open Pighunting Competition to run the Turangi Pighunting competition 2020.
21.	\$8,000.00	to Turangi Rangatahi Hub for the delivery of holiday, leadership and development programme.
22.	\$2,970.00	to Turangi Social Connection for weekly, bi-monthly and twice annually social gatherings and trips.
23.	\$10,000.00	to Turangi Tongariro Sports Foundation Inc. for yearly running costs of the Turangi Tongariro Sports Foundation (TTSF).
24.	\$1,250.00	to Turangi-Tokaanu Sports and Cultural Club (Turangi Dambusters Rugby League) for mouthguards and extension of training gear.

<u>Note:</u> * (Asterisk symbol) denotes GST registered organisation

CARRIED

4.2 TAUPŌ DISTRICT COUNCIL PENSIONER UNITS - WHAREPAPA CLOSE, TURANGI

The Facilities Manager took the report as read and answered questions. Key points noted were:

- There was room to expand the number of units however, that had not been looked at.
- Waiting list numbers were Turangi 5; Taupō 20; and Mangakino 0.
- An annual inspection of all units was done before 30 June each year.
- Residents would phone the Reserve Management & Property Officer with any maintenance issues (small or large) that arose and she would sort as required.
- A full assessment including any remedial repairs and / or refurbishment was completed each time a unit was vacated.
- Units were fitted out for people who could look after themselves, however officers assessed on a case-bycase basis any adjustments required if a person's physical requirements changed.

TT201907/04 RESOLUTION

Moved: Mr Pauline Jenkins-Lyons Seconded: Miss Sharlyn Holt

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board receives the information in relation to Council's pensioner units in Turangi.

CARRIED

4.3 ACTION POINTS UPDATE

The following points were noted.

- The Customer Relations Manager Turangi had spoken with Saturday market organiser Carol Harwood regarding vehicle access into the mall. Stallholders did drive into the mall however, to date there were no broken tiles in that area – *remove item*.
- Don Richards had confirmed that Pukawa were not interested in trialling bins however, they would like to

be privy to feedback on the rubbish bin trial at Omori – remove item.

- The main considerations for hanging baskets in the mall was irrigation and whether the verandas could hold the weight.
- The Chair felt that more ownership with promoting Matariki was needed and suggested that it may need to be included in the Board's community plan *remove item*.
- Playgrounds would be part of upcoming discussions with Ngāti Turangitukua remove item.
- DGLT and gym mini-ball hoops remove items.

TT201907/05 RESOLUTION

Moved: Mr Pauline Jenkins-Lyons Seconded: Mr Wally van der Aa

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board receives the action points update.

CARRIED

4.4 MONTHLY UPDATE ON TURANGI PROJECTS

The following comments were noted:

- Another leaf sweep was scheduled for in July 2019.
- The Customer Relations Manager Turangi would follow up when the last field goal would be installed as rugby league was hosting home games in August.
- The Head of Democracy, Governance & Venues advised that the pool play equipment had been received and was ready to install, however some parts were missing; waiting for these to arrive.
- A member reported that she had recently observed staff working on trees with no protection barriers or signage out.

TT201907/06 RESOLUTION

Moved: Mrs Karen Donlon Seconded: Cr Tangonui Kingi

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board receives the update on Turangi projects as at July 9, 2019.

CARRIED

4.5 TURANGI OPERATIONS REPORT - JUNE 2019

The District Parks Manager went through the operations report. Key points noted were:

- Noted that he was not aware of any contractors in the area recently working on trees however he would follow up.
- A pine plantation at Motuoapa Wastewater Treatment Plant would be removed shortly. Sections of removed logs would be stored on site and would later be brought into town for firewood distribution.
- AC water pipes containing asbestos had been moved off the Council depot site.
- Planting had been done at Kuratau and Motuoapa.
- Grave levelling entailed levelling off the mound of soil after it had settled over time and topping up with top soil if required.
- Had discussed the bin trial at Pukawa with Dave Potaka, Jean Stanley and Don Richards. Although Don
 was not keen on a trial there, he would follow up the Pukawa Property Owners Association committee to
 see if they had different views.
- Trialling seats in the sports changing facility to see if they would be of any use in those spaces; these
 could be screwed into the floor if wanted. The Chair suggested discussing with the users first.
- Noted that Mangakino used to have hanging baskets, which were labour intensive in terms of the irrigation system upkeep and the baskets were often taken. Would discuss with shop owners first to gage

their opinions.

TT201907/07 RESOLUTION

Moved: Miss Sharlyn Holt Seconded: Mrs Karen Donlon

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board receives the Turangi Operations Report as presented on July 9, 2019.

CARRIED

4.6 MEMBERS' REPORTS

The following verbal reports were provided:

Cr Maggie Stewart

- Met with Don Richards, Pukawa Property Owners Association.
- General council business as usual.

Ms Pauline Jenkins-Lyons

- General business.
- Participated in the Tongariro River Shiver.

Mr Te Takinga New

- Congratulated Te Kura o Hirangi for placing in the Te Arawa Kapa Haka Regionals and securing a spot in the national kapa haka event.
- Continued to promote partnership with Ngāti Turangitukua.
- Requested a letter of congratulations for the opening of the Sky Waka gondola be sent to Ruapehu Alpine Lifts.

TT201907/08 RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tangonui Kingi Seconded: Mr Pauline Jenkins-Lyons

That the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board receives the members' reports and community plan updates.

CARRIED

5 CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Nil

The Meeting closed with a karakia by Cr Tangonui Kingi at 4.13pm.

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Turangi/Tongariro Community Board Meeting held on 13 August 2019.

CHAIRPERSON